
 
1 

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday 16th September 2025 
 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 
 
MINUTES OF CORPORATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 
 
Tuesday 16th September 2025 

 
Present:- Councillors Robin Moss, Hal MacFie, Toby Simon, Malcolm Treby, 
Colin Blackburn, Duncan Hounsell, Jess David and Gavin Heathcote 
 
Apologies for absence: Councillors: Ian Halsall 
 

  
159    WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
  

160    EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
The Chair drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure. 

  
161    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 
Councillor Ian Halsall gave his apologies. 
  

162    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none. 
  

163    TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  
 
There was none. 
  

164    ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF THIS MEETING  
 
There were none 
  

165    MINUTES  
 
The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous meetings as a true record and they 
were duly signed by the Chair. 
  

166    CABINET MEMBER UPDATE  
 
The Council Leader was present and stated that he would answer any questions 
under this item and others.  
  

167    Q1 MONITORING REPORT  
 
The officer introduced the report. 



 

 
2 

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday 16th September 2025 
 

 
Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor MacFie asked about the difference in numbers regarding international 
visitors. The Council Leader explained that the Chinese market had not fully 
recovered since Covid where the US had bounced back. He stated that this trend is 
in line with UK inbound and museum numbers. He added that the Roman Baths 
have received accreditation based on value for money and that the spend per 
individual is up. He stated that this was a credit to the Heritage Team.  
 
Councillor Heathcote asked for confirmation that the 8 residential placements in 
Children’s Services (£2.7m) were young people and not asylum seekers. The officer 
stated that was how he understood it. The Council Leader explained that there could 
be some policy development work regarding the private sector exploiting Local 
Government. 
 
Councillor David asked if there is confidence in the level of savings regarding the 
BOB (Being Our Best) scheme. The officer explained that any savings are delayed 
due to the delays in the programme – we are currently working through the appeals 
process. 
 
Councillor David asked if agency costs are a factor. The officer explained that 
relevant services will be working with HR (Human Resources) colleagues to address 
this. 
 
Councillor MacFie asked about flexible capital receipts. The officer explained that 
this was introduced by the Government so capital profit can be used to fund one off 
revenue costs if certain criteria are met. The Council Leader gave an example of the 
Englishcombe Lane project where significant revenue savings could be used 
towards staff costs. 
 
Councillor Blackburn asked about our marketing budget line outside of Visit West 
which is funded by WECA (West of England Combined Authority). The Council 
Leader explained that there is a marketing team in Heritage Services and we are 
aware of the need to push. 
 
Councillor Simon asked that the Panel look at the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
again and asked if there was a feel for levels of arrears. The officer explained that he 
did not have specific figures but thought that collection figures were generally holding 
up. Regarding Council Tax, the Council Leader added that we are lobbying the 
Government to take into account the number of students in a city with regard to the 
Fair Funding Review.  
 
Councillor Treby asked how it is decided which Capital Schemes are paused. The 
officer explained that Capital Schemes generally would have a project contingency 
and there is also a corporate contingency.  
 
Councillor Treby asked if there had been any change in the risk environment since 
the report went to Cabinet in July. The officer explained that the Fair Funding amount 
is still unclear and we will find out November/December time.  
 



 

 
3 

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday 16th September 2025 
 

Councillor Moss stated that we have an officer coming to the November meeting of 
the Panel to talk about the Capital Programme and stated that the outcome of the 
Fair Funding Review is likely in the week before Christmas. He stated that there will 
be transitional protection. The officer stated that a couple of weeks are needed to 
work through it and transition funding would be 3 years. He added that Business 
Rates are unclear for us, there may not be protection regarding pilot reductions. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Moss regarding home to school transport, 
the officer explained that demand is not certain until we get confirmation of the 
September intake numbers. There is no flag of significant variance so far.  
 
Councillor Moss noted that a small number of placements can have an impact on 
budgets. He asked if any placements were ceasing and if there was any discussion 
with the NHS regarding medical/social care. The officer stated that discussions are 
ongoing with our health partners. The Council Leader added that the new Director of 
Children’s Services will be looking at procurement and that other authorities have 
been more ruthless in their discussions with the NHS.  
 
The Chair thanked officers and the Council Leader.  
  

168    PROCUREMENT UPDATE  
 
The officer introduced the report and gave a presentation, the slides are attached to 
these minutes.  
 
Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Simon stated that the ‘social value’ work is appreciated. He asked about 
member involvement being more proactive in terms of contract vetting. The officer 
explained that member involvement at the point of design was built in during the 
Standing Order Review. Councillor Simon explained that he was a member of that 
group and wanted it to go further. The Council Leader explained that the Cabinet 
Member for Resources is working with the Resources Director on this. Councillor 
Simon stated that members could look at scoring/weighting systems. He welcomed 
the start that had been made. 
 
In response to a question form Councillor Treby, the officer explained that there is no 
forecast at this stage on how much more would go to local businesses.  
 
Councillor Moss thanked the officer for the report and noted the balance between 
legal requirements and the outcomes we want. He stated that in the legislation, 
contracts are not supposed to be broken down in size but the Voluntary Sector have 
highlighted that smaller contracts are more winnable for SMEs and the Voluntary 
Sector. He added that larger organisations have bid writing teams. There are 
concerns about contracts being awarded late. He also stated that with larger 
integrated care boards, ‘local’ might mean larger than we think and asked whose 
policy (NHS or Council) takes precedence. The Council Leader stated that it would 
be the one that pays. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Blackburn, the officer confirmed that the 
Council property company is inside the procurement rules.  



 

 
4 

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday 16th September 2025 
 

 
The Chair thanked the Council Leader and officer.   
 
 
   

169    PANEL WORKPLAN  
 
Panel members noted the workplan with the following items scheduled for future 
meetings: 
 
November 2025 
 

• Home to School Finance Report  
• Council Tax Reduction Scheme Update  
• Capital Delivery Project Assurance  
• Parish Council Election and by-election recharges 

 
January 2026 
 

• Library IT 
• Budget discussion 

 
The Panel agreed a new meeting date in February 2026 for the Panel to review 
feedback from each PDS Panel on the Budget.  
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 5.09 pm  
 

Chair(person)  
 

Date Confirmed and Signed  
 

Prepared by Democratic Services 
 



Procurement Update

Corporate Policy 
Development and 

Scrutiny Panel

16th September 2025

P
age 5



Procurement Act 2023 – Update

 Came into force 24th February 2025

 Previous legislation still applies to processes commenced prior to Feb 24th and for contracts let 
under the previous regime 

 Busy, challenging period for the Procurement Team, preparing for go-live

 Overlap with delivery of the Procurement Strategy and particularly the work on Supplier and 
Contract Management

 Not all expected changes have been enacted as yet 

 More changes to come 

 Also working to the Provider Selection Regime – for Healthcare Services

P
age 6



Procurement Act - Key Deliverables

 Completion of Procurement Act 2023 Training – Cabinet Office delivered 

 Central Digital Platform registration and set up 

 Integration of our e-tendering system with the Central Digital Platform 

 Review of our e-tendering system to ensure PA23 requirements built into process, including 
publication of a range of additional notices

 Intranet Pages updated to reflect changes – publication of PA23 guidance documents 

 Internal templates produced / updated for procurement activity 

 Review of standard terms and conditions with legal team – to reflect PA23 implied terms

 Pipeline publication on Central Digital Platform 

P
age 7



Procurement Act – Ongoing

 Publication of payments compliance information and payments over £30k (requirement not yet 
in force) 

 Review of Supplier and Contract Management processes – ensure ability to publish mandatory 
notices and comply with requirements throughout the contract lifecycle 

 Identification of future contracts over £5m – in order to plan for performance reporting / 
publication of contract requirements

 Ongoing publication of Central Digital Platform Pipeline – for activity over £2m 

 Duty to remove barriers to SMEs - ITT / quote documents reviewed, recent CSO changes 
support simpler processes at higher values. Other SME barriers will need to be considered for 
each procurement 

 Ensuring considered design of procurement activity to ensure PA23 compliance and that 
flexibilities are being harnessed, where appropriate 

P
age 8



Procurement Reform Consultation

 Consultation on further procurement reform has recently taken place

 Focused on ‘growing British industry, jobs and skills’

 Aim: to create a simpler and more transparent regime for public sector procurement that delivers better value for money, drives 
economic growth, and safeguards national interests

 Proposals included: 

 Setting targets for procurement spend with SMEs and VCSEs – annual reporting against these targets 

 Extending requirements around prompt payment and payment transparency to all payments – regardless of value and whether 
the contract was above or below the PA23 threshold 

 Excluding suppliers from bidding (above £5m contracts) if they cannot demonstrate prompt payment to supply chains 

 Increased flexibility for people-focused services (i.e. social care) – allowing award without competition in wider circumstances

 An obligation to undertake and publish a public interest test when making decisions around insourcing or outsourcing 

 Streamlining of standard national social value criteria – focussing on jobs, opportunities or skills

 Setting of a minimum weighting to social value and one SV KPI relating to jobs, opportunities or skills in major contracts (over
£5m) 

 Consultation period closed early September – formal response expected within a couple of months 

 May result in Government introducing legislation to amend the Act and introduction of minor technical amendments to the Act

P
age 9



Procurement Strategy Update

 Revised Procurement Strategy approved at Cabinet September 2024 

 Came into force 1st November 2024

 Despite resourcing challenges and a focus on Procurement Act implementation we have made some good 
progress against our delivery plan 

 Identified a number of activities which we would seek to deliver ‘As Soon As Practically Possible’ 

 More to be delivered over the coming 6-12 months

P
age 10



Procurement Strategy – Good Progress

 Reviewed and updated the Contract Standing Orders – came into force 1st July 2025

 Gateways / Commissioning Plans / Procurement Plans – built into revised CSOs, working with 
Business Change in roll out of gateways 

 Invitation to Tender templates reviewed for ease of use / accessibility for SMEs 

 Ongoing work with the sustainability team regarding minimum standards for goods, works and 
services

 Collation of pipeline – internet version (above £100k) has been updated, and PA23 version (above 
£2m) published in May 

 SPT development for PA23 – ongoing, will continue to engage with Cabinet Office delivered training 
and development sessions, plus webinars offered by legal firms etc

 Engaging local supply market – recent CSO changes encourage engagement of local suppliers and 
a more straightforward invited quotes process (increased threshold)

P
age 11



Procurement Strategy – Next 6+ Months 

 Review of the Council’s Social Value Policy 

 Progress made in trialling a new approach in recent tenders

 Approach to be reviewed, reflected and adjusted

 Work with other service areas to identify local social value priorities 

 Develop revised policy and accompanying officer guidance 

 Supplier and Contract Management

 Procurement Manager and Senior Procurement Officer roles focussing on Supplier and Contract Management now 
in post

 Current focus is on understanding the Council’s current position and planning 

 B&NES standard approach and tools are being developed

 Plan for rolling out a Contract Management Framework now in place

P
age 12


	Minutes
	 

